
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - March 06, 2019

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, March 06, 2019

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the minutes from the February 6, 2019 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS
3.a. Consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan for the properties

located at 1003, 1017 & 1021 Fourth Street, 117 Merrill Street, and 1016 Third Street
(Christensen)
Attachment

3.b. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from
C-3, Community Commercial District, to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the
properties located at 1003, 1017 and 1021 Fourth Street and 117 Merrill Street and from R-3,
Low-Density Multifamily Residential District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the
property located at 1016 Third Street
Attachment

3.c. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from
temporary R-1A, Single Family Residential District, to permanent R-1A, Single Family
Residential District, for the property located at 1014 W Froebel Drive
Attachment

4. REPORTS

4.a. Consideration of the Turtle Creek Master Plan for the property located at 1312 E Grand Avenue
Attachment

4.b. Consideration of the release of two feet of a utility easement over the property located at 3745
Eagles Ridge Drive
Attachment

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

6. ADJOURNMENT

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/316912/02-06-2019_Plan_Commission_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/316913/March_6_Staff_Report_3_a___PUD__OReilly_Auto_Parts.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/316914/March_6_Staff_Report_3_b___ZMA-2019-03__OReilly_PUD.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/316115/March_6_Staff_Report_3_c___ZMA-2019-02__1014_Froebel_Drive__Permanent_R-1A.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/316258/March_6_Memo_4_a____January_23_Staff_Report_4_b__RPB-2019-01__1312_E._Grand_Ave__Master_Park_Plan_-_Copy.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/316138/March_6_Staff_Report_4_b___RPB-2019-03__3745_Eagles_Ridge_Drive.pdf


Beloit Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - March 06, 2019

Page | 2

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

2



1 | P a g e

Meeting Minutes
Beloit City Plan Commission

Wednesday, February 6, 2019 at 7:00 PM
The Forum

Beloit City Hall
100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. Commissioners Weeden,
Johnson, Faragher, Ruster, Finnegan, and City Councilor Preuschl were present.
Commissioners Haynes and Robson were absent.

2. Approval of the Minutes of the January 9, 2018 Meeting
Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Johnson
seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.

3. Public Hearings
a. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district

classification from temporary R-1A, Single Family Residential District, to
permanent R-1A, Single Family Residential District, for the property located at
2032 E. Ridge Rd

Planning & Building Services Director, Drew Pennington, presented the staff report and
recommendation.

Commissioner Faragher opened and closed public hearing.

Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the rezoning application. Commissioner
Ruster seconded the motion. Motion passed, voice vote.

3



2 | P a g e

4. Reports
a. Consideration of a Resolution approving the site plans for the property located

at 555 Lawton Ave
Mr. Pennington presented the staff report and recommendation.

Commissioner Weeden asked if the traffic study looked at any potential impact of the
new traffic signal at White Ave and Prince Hall on the traffic entering the Fairbanks
property at 701 White Ave. Mr. Pennington stated that the full extent was included from
Park Ave to Riverside Drive.

Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the site plan. Commissioner Johnson
seconded the motion. Motion passed, voice vote.

b. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning from C-1,
Office District, to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, for the property
located at 916 Bushnell Street

Mr. Pennington presented the staff report and recommendation.

Commissioner Ruster questioned if Plan Commission approves the zoning change,
whether the applicant can then put up the sign and not come back to Plan Commission.
Mr. Pennington stated that if Plan Commission approves the zoning change to PLI, the
applicant will not have to come back to Plan Commission prior to installing an electronic
sign. Councilor Prueschl asked if there is any public approval required for the sign as
long as it meets the sign guidelines for that zoning. Mr. Pennington stated there are
standards in the sign code such as hours of operation and illumination, but there are no
setbacks from residential districts and no public hearing requirements. Commissioner
Faragher stated that the neighbors are not necessarily pleased about this decision and
there was supposed to be a meeting for the property owners and applicant to come to
an agreement. Commissioner Finnegan stated that the applicant and neighbors met but
did not come to an agreement, and the applicant is not moving forward with installing
an electronic sign at this time.

Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the rezoning application. Commissioner
Finnegan seconded the motion. Motion passed, voice vote (4-1 with Ruster against).

c. Consideration of the Turtle Creek Master Plan for the property located at 1312
E. Grand Avenue

Mr. Pennington presented the staff report and recommendation.

Commissioner Johnson questioned if there are plans to take over the Finnegan land and
who owns that now. Mark Edwards, Director of Parks and Recreation, stated that the
property is still owned by Finnegan’s, and the City has talked about possibly later down
the road acquiring the land. Commissioner Johnson stated that taking the park all the

4



3 | P a g e

way to Park Ave would be a good plan. Mr. Edwards stated that is the City’s intent to
take the park all the way to Park Ave. Commissioner Ruster questioned if things have
been done over the years to alleviate the floods, and how the creek will be addressed.
Mr. Edwards stated that on the North side of the creek it does not flood but the South
side does, and the City has not addressed or looked into that yet.

Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the plan. Commissioner Ruster seconded the
motion. Motion passed voice vote.

d. Consideration of Phase 1 Improvements to Turtle Creek Park, specifically the
construction of an open air pavilion and new parking area

Mr. Pennington presented the staff report and recommendation.

Commissioner Faragher asked if there was a set time on the demolition of the old bath
house, and how long the Park and Recreation Committee has been working on this plan.
Councilor Preuschl stated that the Park and Recreation Committee has been working on
this project for five years, and the City had to talk with the Landmarks Commission.
Commissioner Weeden questioned how long it will take to complete all five phases. Mr.
Edwards stated that it could be five to twenty years. Commissioner Weeden questioned
if the phases could be reordered depending on use or need. Mr. Edwards stated that the
phases could be reordered as a part of funding, and the Parks and Recreation
Committee wanted to put the phases together as a road map.

Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the improvements. Commissioner Ruster
seconded the motion. Motion passed, voice vote.

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
No report.

6. Adjournment
Commissioner Johnson moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Weeden
seconded the motion. Motion passed, voice vote.

Meeting adjourned at 7:27pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts.

5



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: March 6, 2019

Agenda Item: 3(a)

File Number: PUD-2019-01

General Information

Applicant: Aetna Development Corporation

Owner: Victor Carr (Note: Applicant Provided Copy of Accepted Offer to Purchase)

Address/Location: 1003, 1017, & 1021 Fourth Street; 117 Merrill Street; and 1016 Third Street

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: The applicant has submitted an application for review and consideration of a
Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the redevelopment of five (5) separate parcels at
the NE corner of Fourth Street and Merrill Street into an O’Reilly Auto Parts store.

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process: A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district and a type of
development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no rights of development apply to
a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD plan. PUDs are processed in three stages:
Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and Final Plan. Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map
Amendments may be processed concurrently, provided that no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until
approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan.

The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, including the
number, type, and location of dwelling units and other uses; impacts on surrounding areas; and the
adequacy of facilities and services. The result of this review is the establishment of the basic parameters for
development of the PUD. The PUD Final Plan is the document upon which building permits and other
applicable approvals are issued. The applicant must submit the detailed and technical information necessary
to demonstrate that all applicable standards, requirements, and conditions have been met.

Staff Analysis

Project Summary: The proposed redevelopment includes demolition of all existing structures and surface
parking lots followed by construction of a 7,200 square-foot retail building and parking/driving areas to
accommodate 29 off-street parking stalls. The applicant is seeking approval of a PUD in order to provide
flexibility in building and driveway placement, and to facilitate compliance with the floodplain ordinance
requirements. The proposed site plan contemplates two driveways on Fourth Street, one driveway on Merrill
Street, and a fourth driveway leading to Third Street.

Existing Site Conditions: The properties located at 1003 and 1021 Fourth Street have historically been used as
auto repair shops, while the property located at 1017 Fourth Street is a two-family dwelling (duplex). The
property located at 117 Merrill Street is used as a surface parking area, while the property located at 1016
Third Street is a vacant lot. 6



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: Four of the subject parcels are zoned C-3, Community Commercial, while
the parcel located at 1016 Third Street is zoned R-3, Low-Density Multifamily Residential. The proposed use is
permitted in C-3 but not R-3. The applicant has submitted a related application to rezone all five parcels to
PUD. If the requested PUD is approved, the applicant will need to consolidate all five parcels into one via
Certified Survey Map (CSM). Adjacent land uses include residential to the southeast and east of the proposed
development and commercial to the north. The proposed project site is located along Fourth Street (State
Highways 81/213), a four-lane arterial roadway that connects the downtown area to the Beloit Memorial High
School (BMHS) campus. Fourth Street has a daily volume of approximately 11,000 vehicles per WisDOT.

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan: The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map
recommends Planned Mixed Uses, which contemplates the redevelopment and improvement of this
important commercial corridor with an emphasis upon mixing land uses, vitality, and walkability. This request
supports Strategic Goal #3 by creating economic growth.

Zoning Ordinance Requirements:
Density/Intensity and Dimensional Standards: The proposed PUD includes a front building setback of 15
feet in order to allow turning movements into the rear parking area, which is half of the minimum 30-foot
setback in the C-3 district. The other proposed setbacks are well beyond the minimum setbacks in the C-3
district. The subject properties are located in the 100-year floodplain, and therefore must be elevated two
feet above the base flood elevation. The building has a proposed first floor elevation of 749.2, which
complies with the floodplain ordinance. In addition, the building must be surrounded by a 15-foot
elevated buffer that is at least one foot above the base flood elevation. In order to achieve this buffer, the
plan includes a small retaining wall where the development site meets the public sidewalk along Fourth
Street. The grading plan is part of the site plan review process, which is ongoing at the staff level.

Building Design: The proposed building is one story in height. The proposed exterior walls are split-faced
block in two different colors as shown on the rendering. The storefront will face south towards the
parking lot, and will include an aluminum storefront door/window system and a stucco entry feature with
signage. The applicant has submitted preliminary sign renderings, as the Sign Code is based upon
conventional zoning districts and sign allowances must be approved for PUDs on a case-by-case basis.

Parking and Loading Requirements: According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, retail stores
must provide at least 1 parking stall per 250 square feet, which equates to 29 parking stalls for the
proposed development. The applicant has proposed 29 parking stalls.

Other Requirements: The site is adjacent to the Merrill Street Historic District, a collection of four brass town
cottage-style homes located at 103-115 Merrill Street. In accordance with the City’s landscape standards, the
proposed commercial development will need to be separated from these single-family homes by a privacy
fence that is at least six feet in height. The fence will need to be wood or PVC with the finished side facing out.
The review agents are reviewing a full set of civil site plans for this project.

PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria: Applications may be approved if the following criteria are met:

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict
application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based on the purpose and intent
of this chapter.
The proposed PUD includes a relaxed front building setback in order to provide access and turning
movements into the rear parking area on the currently vacant lot at 1016 Third Street. The rear
parking lot includes 18 parking stalls, which are necessary in order to meet parking requirements.

7



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 5-300.
The proposed PUD will provide for efficient use of public utilities and vacant land, and will be an
attractive addition to an existing commercial corridor.

3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and
programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed;
As a redevelopment site, the properties are already served with the necessary utilities and facilities.
Any relocation/replacement costs will be borne by the developer.

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in
the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; and
The proposed development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendations to
redevelop the Fourth Street corridor as a mixture of commercial and residential uses.
Redevelopment along this corridor within the last five years has included Tilley’s and the SDB Office.

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development
will promote the general welfare of the community.
The plan will redevelop several somewhat blighted properties with extensive outdoor storage yards
into a retail site that complies with all of the City’s current site, building, lighting, landscaping, and
floodplain standards. The PUD will allow the building to be closer to the sidewalk with parking to the
rear, which enhances walkability and is consistent with contemporary urban design principles.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the PUD – Master Land Use Plan for the
properties located at 1003, 1017, & 1021 Fourth Street; 117 Merrill Street; and 1016 Third Street, subject to
the following conditions:

1. This approval authorizes the redevelopment of the subject properties including a 7,200 square-foot
retail store, off-street parking lot, and numerous site improvements. Only one primary building and
one accessory building may be constructed with a maximum coverage of 10,000 square feet. The
minimum building setbacks shall be 15 feet on all sides and the maximum height shall be one story.

2. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, all five parcels shall be combined via Certified Survey Map (CSM).
3. This PUD may have one primary sign up to 25 feet in height and 150 square feet in area and up to three

secondary wall signs totaling no more than 150 square feet for all signs combined.
4. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant shall obtain site plan and architectural approval,

which shall include a detailed review of all site, grading, utility, landscape, and lighting plans. The plans
shall include a privacy fence along the shared border with the adjacent single-family properties.

5. The final/site plan shall provide a pedestrian connection between the entrance and public sidewalk.
6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan

Commission and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. The Director of Planning &
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses
that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

ATTACHMENTS: Map, Master Land Use Plan, Photos, Building Design, Application, Notice, and Mailing List.

8



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

9



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan

10



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

Buildings to be Razed for Redevelopment

11



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

12



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

13



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

14



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

15



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

16



March 6 Staff Report 3(a), PUD, OReilly Auto Parts

17



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: March 6, 2019

Agenda Item: 3(b)

File Number: ZMA-2019-03

General Information

Applicant: Aetna Development Corporation

Owner: Victor Carr (Note: Applicant Provided Copy of Accepted Offer to Purchase)

Address/Location: 1003, 1017, & 1021 Fourth Street; 117 Merrill Street; and 1016 Third Street

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: The applicant is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment from C-3, Community
Commercial District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the properties located at 1003, 1017, &
1021 Fourth Street and 117 Merrill Street; and from R-3, Low-Density Multifamily Residential District to PUD
for the property located at 1016 Third Street.

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process: A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district and a type of
development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no rights of development apply to
a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD plan. PUDs are processed in three stages:
Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and Final Plan. Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map
Amendments may be processed concurrently, provided that no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until
approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan.

The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, including the
number, type, and location of dwelling units and other uses; impacts on surrounding areas; and the adequacy
of facilities and services. The result of this review is the establishment of the basic parameters for
development of the PUD. The PUD Final Plan is the document upon which building permits and other
applicable approvals are issued. The PUD Final Plan review stage is the point at which developers bring
forward detailed plans for carrying out the type of project conceptually approved during Master Land Use Plan
review. The applicant must submit the detailed and technical information necessary to demonstrate that all
applicable standards, requirements, and conditions have been met.

Staff Analysis

Project Summary: The proposed redevelopment includes demolition of all existing structures and surface
parking lots followed by construction of a 7,200 square-foot retail building and parking/driving areas to
accommodate 29 off-street parking stalls. The applicant is seeking approval of a PUD in order to provide
flexibility in building and driveway placement, and to facilitate compliance with the floodplain ordinance
requirements. The proposed site plan contemplates two driveways on Fourth Street, one driveway on Merrill
Street, and a fourth driveway leading to Third Street.

Existing Site Conditions: The properties located at 1003 and 1021 Fourth Street have historically been used as
auto repair shops, while the property located at 1017 Fourth Street is a two-family dwelling (duplex). The

18



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

property located at 117 Merrill Street is used as a surface parking area, while the property located at 1016
Third Street is a vacant lot.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: Four of the subject parcels are zoned C-3, Community Commercial, while
the parcel located at 1016 Third Street is zoned R-3, Low-Density Multifamily Residential along with other
properties on Third Street. The proposed use is permitted in C-3 but not R-3. Adjacent land uses include
residential to the southeast and east of the proposed development and commercial to the north. The
proposed project site is located along Fourth Street (State Highways 81/213), a four-lane arterial roadway that
connects the downtown area to the Beloit Memorial High School (BMHS) campus. Fourth Street has a daily
volume of approximately 11,000 vehicles per WisDOT.

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan: The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map
recommends Planned Mixed Uses, which contemplates the redevelopment and improvement of this
important commercial corridor with an emphasis upon mixing land uses, vitality, and walkability. This request
supports Strategic Goal #3 by creating economic growth.

Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed retail PUD is consistent with the existing commercial uses along Fourth Street, along
with the nearby mixed residential uses. There is an auto parts store directly across Fourth Street from
the subject properties. The PUD will redevelop several somewhat blighted properties with extensive
outdoor storage yards into a retail site that complies with all of the City’s current site, building, lighting,
landscaping, and floodplain standards.

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed retail PUD is consistent with the surrounding C-3, Community Commercial District, which
encompasses two full blocks of Fourth Street. The proposed redevelopment will comply with the
floodplain ordinance requirements related to an elevated building and site.

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.
The subject properties are suitable for the uses that are permitted in the existing zoning classification.
With the exception of 1016 Third Street, all of the properties already have a commercial zoning
classification that would allow a retail store to operate.

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
There has been sporadic redevelopment along the Fourth Street corridor in the past two decades,
including CVS/Pharmacy, Tilley’s Pizza, and Enterprise. The School District of Beloit Administrative
Office Building a few blocks north is being developed as a PUD.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from C-3, Community Commercial District to PUD, Planned Unit Development
District, for the properties located at 1003, 1017, & 1021 Fourth Street and 117 Merrill Street; and from R-3,
Low-Density Multifamily Residential District to PUD for the property located at 1016 Third Street.

ATTACHMENTS: Location and Zoning Map, PUD Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.
19



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

20



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan

21



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

22



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

23



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

24



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

25



March 6 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2019-03, OReilly PUD

26



March 6 Staff Report 3(c), ZMA-2019-02, 1014 Froebel Drive, Permanent R-1A  
   

 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date: March 6, 2019 

Agenda Item:  3(c) 

File Number:  ZMA-2019-02 

 

General Information 

 

Applicant:  Planning & Building Services Division 
 
Owner:  Suzanne Dammen 
 
Address/Location:  1014 Froebel Drive  
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal:  Permanent Zoning Classification of R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District 
 
Staff Analysis 

 
Project Summary:  The Planning & Building Services Division has submitted an application for a 
Zoning Map Amendment from temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential District to permanent 
R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 1014 Froebel Drive in the 
City of Beloit. The R-1A district is primarily intended to accommodate single-family detached 
dwellings on moderate to large-size lots, at typical densities of 2 to 5 units per acre. 
 
Existing Site Conditions:  The City Council adopted an Ordinance attaching the subject property 
to the City of Beloit on December 17, 2018. Section 4 of the Attachment Ordinance assigns a 
temporary zoning district classification of R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, and directs 
the Plan Commission to initiate a permanent zoning district classification for the subject 
property. As staff to the Plan Commission, Planning staff has initiated this request. 
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The subject property is located in the Froebel Subdivision, 
and was annexed/attached in order to connect the existing single-family home with a failing 
septic system to the City’s sanitary sewer. Planning staff notified the owners of this permanent 
zoning request, which will not affect the allowable uses of the property. The subject property 
backs up to the Burton Ridge Apartments, and there are existing single-family homes to the 
east and west within the remaining Town of Beloit. One single-family property west of the 
subject property (1030 Froebel Drive) was annexed into the City and zoned R-1A in 1992. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use 
Map recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses of the subject property.  This request 

27



March 6 Staff Report 3(c), ZMA-2019-02, 1014 Froebel Drive, Permanent R-1A  
   

is consistent with Strategic Goals #1 and #5 by creating & sustaining high-quality neighborhoods 
and infrastructure.   
 
Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall 
make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 
 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The permitted uses within the R-1A district are compatible with existing uses within the 
surrounding low-density residential area. 

  
2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  

The nearby property that has been attached/annexed into the City, is zoned R-1A, 
Single-Family Residential. To the south of the subject property, the Burton Ridge 
Apartments are zoned PUD. The remaining Town of Beloit properties are subject to 
Town zoning. 

 
3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning 

classification.  
The subject property is already zoned R-1A, but on a temporary basis.  The subject 
property contains a single family house which is allowed in the R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District. 
 

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the 
subject property. 
Although only one other property on Froebel Drive has been attached/annexed in the 
past few years, this trend is likely to accelerate as existing septic systems continue to fail 
in this neighborhood, and attachment is required in order to connect to the City’s 
sanitary sewer system. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment 
to change the zoning district classification from temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential 
District to permanent R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 1014 
Froebel Drive. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location and Zoning Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List 
 
 

28



March 6 Staff Report 3(c), ZMA-2019-02, 1014 Froebel Drive, Permanent R-1A 

 
29



March 6 Staff Report 3(c), ZMA-2019-02, 1014 Froebel Drive, Permanent R-1A 

30



March 6 Staff Report 3(c), ZMA-2019-02, 1014 Froebel Drive, Permanent R-1A 

 

31



March 6 Staff Report 3(c), ZMA-2019-02, 1014 Froebel Drive, Permanent R-1A 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

February 20, 2019 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

The Planning & Building Services Division has submitted an application for a Zoning Map 

Amendment from temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential District to permanent R-1A, 

Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at: 

 

1014 Froebel Drive. 

 

The City Council adopted an Ordinance attaching the subject property to the City of Beloit on 

December 7, 2018.  Section 4 of the Attachment Ordinance assigns a temporary zoning district 

classification of temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, and directs the Plan 

Commission to initiate a permanent zoning district classification for the subject property. This 

request will not affect the allowable uses of the subject property. 

 

The following public hearings will be held regarding this application: 

 

City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, March 8, 2019, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 

matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

 

City Council:  Monday, March 18, 2019, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 

heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS. 
 

We are interested in your opinion. 
 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring ten (10) copies and 

submit them to the Recording Secretary before the meeting begins.  Staff is unable to leave the 

meeting area to make copies. 

 

For additional information, please contact Hilary Rottmann in the Planning & Building 

Services Division at (608) 364-6708 or rottmannh@beloitwi.gov.  Comments will be accepted 

via telephone, email, and U.S. Mail. 

 

 

32

mailto:rottmannh@beloitwi.gov


March 6 Staff Report 3(c), ZMA-2019-02, 1014 Froebel Drive, Permanent R-1A 

 

 

 

BURTON FINGER LLC 
BURTON WRIGHT LLC 

3120 GATEWAY RD 
BROOKFIELD WI 53045 

  
SHEPHERD FAMILY REVOCABLE 

TRUST 
1022 W FROEBEL DR 

BELOIT, WI 53511-2057 

 

  
KEVIN C & TRACY A HEIN 

1006 W FROEBEL DR 
BELOIT, WI 53511-2057 

 
 

JAY HILBELINK 
1923 N 40TH ST 

SHEBOYGAN, WI 53081-1745 

 

 EDWARD A & JOAN PATTON 
FAMILY TRUST 

846 W FROEBEL DR 
BELOIT, WI 53511-2068 

 

  
MATERESA & RENE AGUILAR 

838 W FROEBEL DR 
BELOIT, WI 53511-2068 

 
 

BRYON WOLF 
830 W FROEBEL DR 

BELOIT, WI 53511-2068 

 

  
GARY & ROSE DAVIS 

1030 FROEBEL DR 
BELOIT WI 535112057 

 

  
RANDALL R & LINDA A RICKELS 

2060 S AFTON RD 
BELOIT, WI 53511-2013 

 
     

     

     

     

     

     

     

33



 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

Departmental Correspondence 
 
To: Plan Commission  
 
From: Hilary Rottmann, Planner II 
 
Date: March 6, 2019 
 
Re: Turtle Creek Master Plan –Site Plan 

 

 

Tonight’s agenda includes The Turtle Creek Master Plan which was originally reviewed on January 
23, 2019. An incorrect site plan was included in the original report. The correct site plan is attached. 
The Park, Recreation & Conservation Advisory Committee requested that the restrooms be relocated 
from the south to the north of the Pavilion to be closer to the bike and walking trail. At the City Council 
Meeting on February 18, 2019, City Council directed staff to bring this item back to Plan Commission 
with the correct site plan.  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

c: RPB-2019-01 

34



 

35



  

36



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  January 23, 2019 

Agenda Item:  4.b.  

File Number:  RPB-2019-01 

General Information 

Applicant:  City of Beloit Parks and Recreation Division  

Owner:  City of Beloit  

Address/Location:  1312 E. Grand Avenue Turtle Creek Park  

Applicant’s Request:  The Parks and Recreation Division has requested the review and approval of the 
Master Plan for Turtle Creek Park located at 1312 E. Grand Avenue.    

Staff Analysis 

Existing Conditions:  The subject property is a public park owned by the City of Beloit, 11.39-acre parcel 
located along the Illinois state line. 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are auto sales and repair garage land uses and C-3, 
Community Commercial District zoning to the north. Properties located to the east are Bar/Tavern, 
Storage, and baseball field land uses zoned C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District. Located directly to 
the south is a vacant building with IH, Heavy Industrial District zoning located in South Beloit Illinois. To 
the west is a Storage warehouse and residential use with C-3, Community Commercial District zoning.  

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Future Land Use Map recommends Parks 
and Open Spaces. This request supports Strategic Goal #5 by creating and sustaining high quality 
infrastructure and connectivity. 

Analysis: Turtle Creek Park was designated as a landmark in 1998 due to its role as a gathering place for 
the Beloit African-American community in the mid-twentieth century. The City’s 2018-2020 Strategic 
Plan includes a Key Initiative to revitalize Turtle Creek Park. The Master Plan was created by staff, a 
consultant, and citizens of the community to revitalize this underutilized park. The Master Plan has been 
approved by the Park, Recreation & Conservation Advisory Committee and the Landmarks Commission.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the Master Plan for Turtle Creek Park 
located at 1312 E. Grand Avenue. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Master Plan 

37



 
38



 39



 

40



 
41



 
42



 

43



 

 

44



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  March 6, 2019 

Agenda Item:  4.b.  

File Number:  RPB-2019-03 

General Information 

Applicant:  Arc Design Resources, Inc.  

Owner:  New Leaf Homes LLC  

Address/Location:  3745 Eagles Ridge Drive  

Applicant’s Request:  Release of Platted Utility Easement on Lot 56 of Eagles Ridge Plat #3 -3745 Eagles 
Ridge Drive.    

Staff Analysis 

Existing Conditions:  The subject property is Lot 56 of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 3 in the City of Beloit, a 0.22-
acre parcel located on the east side of the City. A single-family home is under construction on this site, 
and the property is zoned R-1, Single-Family Residential.  

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  R1-A, Single-Family Residential zoning surrounds the subject 
property. Homes have been built to the North and East. Homes are being constructed to the South and 
West.  

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Future Land Use Map recommends Single-
Family Residential -Urban. This request supports Strategic Goal #5 by creating and sustaining high 
quality infrastructure and connectivity. 

Analysis: When the Eagles Ridge Subdivision was platted, the approved plat included 10-foot utility 
easements along many interior and rear lot lines, which were intended to provide internal utility 
connections as the lots were individually developed. The request is to reduce the east side lot easement 
from 10 feet to be 8 feet. The foundation was poured 1 foot into the easement. The applicant is 
requesting this 2 foot release of easement to clean up the easement encroachment. The home complies 
with all zoning setbacks. 

This request has been reviewed by the City Engineer, and he does not have any objection to the release 
of this easement.  He commented that the City does not have any utilities within the area being 
requested for release. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the release of platted utility 
easement on Lot 56 of Eagles Ridge Plat #3 located at 3745 Eagles Ridge Drive. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Proposed Release of Utility Easements and Subdivision Plat 
45



 
 
 
 

46



 

47



 

48


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-1046 - Attachment
	2018-1047 - Attachment
	2018-1048 - Attachment
	2018-1049 - Attachment
	2018-1051 - Attachment
	2018-1050 - Attachment

